
- CITY OF

LooDer Lrtv
I Son olo.e soe.dt a

CITY OF COOPER CITY
CITY COMMISSION

COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
January 7,2O2O

6:3O PM

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Mayor Ross opened the meeting at 6:30 PM and lead the assembly in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Roll Call
Present were Commissioners Pulcini, Meltzer, Green, Curran and Mayor Ross.

3. Public Comments (each member of the public is allowed to speak for four
(4) minutes)

4. Public Interview of City Manager candidates

Mike Bailey introduced himself and said he is the current Utilities Director and
City Engineer he has held that position since 2005. Prior to that, he spent 17
years with the City of Fort Lauderdale as the Utilitles engineer, when he left
Fort Lauderdale he was the Assistant Utilities Director. Before that, he worked
in the City of Margate as an engineering inspector. He has a degree in
Mechanical Engineering and his PE license from the state.

Commissioner Green asked what his vision is for the City'

Mr. Bailey answered he believes it is more important to follow the vision of
the Commission. He also said that he would like to see more stability and
harmony with the City government and the residents.

Commissioner Green asked what his priorities are.

Mr. Bailey answered the BSO contract and developing a forecast for the
general fu nd.

Commissioner Meltzer asked what he sees as the biggest challenge in the
City.



[4r. Bailey answered the General Fund balance needs to be satisfactory. He
also said the BSO contract and improving public information.

Commissioner Pulcini said we are in desperate need of a City lvlanager is
ready to start leading day one.

Mr. Bailey answered yes

Commissioner Pulcini asked what speciflc improvements do you have in mind
for processes.

Mr, Bailey said that we need to improve policies and procedures such as drug
free workplace and EOC. Operational he needs to dig in,

Commissioner Pulcini asked do you think the city has an effective system of
internal controls and will he concentrate on that issue day one.

Mr, Bailey said his intentions day one is to speak with the Commissioners and
department heads and he will take ques from the Commission. He wants
opinions flrst from the Commission.

Commissioner Pulcini asked his objective and subjective goals.

14r. Bailey answered he will prioritize actions and beef up policies to have
better control over activities

Mayor Ross asked Mr. Bailey if he supplied a resume.

Mr, Bailey answered no.

I4ayor Ross asked if he had any experience as a City Manager.

[4ike said he had one-week experience as acting City lYanager. That was 14
months ago and he has gotten to know the commission better and he belives
now he can lead.

lvayor Ross said he does not visit blogs often but he saw a comment that
said if Mike Bailey is selected it is the same old same old.

Mr. Bailey said he would refer to his track record in the Utilities department,
No one knows how in particular we run but we have to be disciplined with
laws and regulations. He will try and run the City as he run the Utilities
department which is ran good as a team.

I4ayor Ross asked how would you deal with the fact with becoming the
Director's bosses.

N4r. Bailey said he been through that before and he has no issues with that at
a ll.

Commissioner l4eltzer said he is a big believer that familiarity breeds
contempt and how would you become a more effective leader.

l,lr. Bailey said he will establish a good team and he wants to hear everyone's
concerns.



commissioner Meltzer also asked if you become the boss could you make
difficult decisions when necessary.

l4r. Bailey answered he can make hard decisions that the board can agree to.

Commissioner curran thanked Mr. Bailey for applying and said he has been
professional and on point. He has no issues with him becoming the leader
because he sees him run the utility department. He asked lvlr. Bailey if he
could work with 5 different personalities,

N4r. Bailey answered he is confident he can work with all the Commissioners
and Mayor, Mr. Bailey answered he is confident as he has a diverse staff now
and in Ft Lauderdale he had 400 employees. He prides himself on working
with anyone. He doesn't get worked up and he has spoken to all
Commissioners and he knows the City's best interests at are heart

Commissioner Pulcini asked what made that week hard when he was interim.

lvlr. Bailey said the Mayor.

Mayor Ross said he always does the research as an attorney and he asked if
he reviewed Mr, Napoli's resume.

Mr. Bailey answered yes and said you cannot go wrong either way.

Mayor Ross asked if you believe you can have a balanced budget if you defer
capital projects

Mr. Bailey answered a short period of time can be worked with.

Commissioner curran asked if you defer projects prices can increase.

l4r. Bailey said some projects can be delayed some cannot.

Commissioner Pulcini said he is happy with how Mr. Bailey runs the
enterprise fund.

14r, Bailey said it is important to have a 1o-year flnancial plan in the general
fu nd.

Commissioner Pulcini asked could he apply what he has done in Utilities to
the entire City.

lYr. Bailey answered that is his intent.

N4r. Napoli introduced himself and said he is glad to see members of the
public at meetings, He appreciates the opportunity and what is needed in a
city is a strong leader with integrity and is committed. He has a broad and
varied background. He attended WestPoint Academy and has a masteT's
degree from Colombia University and also a masteT's degree from the Army
War College. He has lead small to large organizations both in the United
States and throughout the world. After the military, he established an
adaptive leadership style. He went into the private sector and worked for a
national consulting technology firm. He was then Chief of staff at Miami



International airport. He next served as Deputy City lYanager in the City of
lYiami. He improved the City's efficiency for the residents and established
permitting electronically,

Commissioner Pulicini asked why Cooper City.

Mr. Napoli said he loves his job but he loves the opportunity to be more in
touch with the residents versus a large city.

Commissioner Pulcini said we have been looking for a City Manager for
months we need someone who can lead day 1.

N'lr. Napoli said he can provide instant leadership.

Commissioner Pulcini asked if he has watched meetings,

lvlr. Napoli said he has watched some.

Commissioner Pulcini asked if he thinks we have effective over internal
controls.

Mr, Napoli said he could not answer,

Commissioner Pulcini asked if he looked at the CAFR.

l4r. Napoli answered no but he did look at the budget.

Commissioner 14eltzer asked what the City's biggest challenge is.

lYr. Napoli said leadership. In addition, the biggest challenge is revenue
sources and being able to live in the budget.

Commissioner f4eltzer said coming from an organization weTe your
responsible for 400 employees how do you transition to the City's smaller
scale.

Mr, Napoli said you need to be invested in staff. He is very accessible and he
visits with staff. Leadership is establishing himself by gaining confldence and
trust of staff by making clear expectations. Having a smaller staff is a
tremendous opportunity to have more influence.

Commissioner Green asked what his vision is for the City.

14r. Napoli answered his vision is to ensure Cooper City can maintain if not
exceed the current lifestyle and expectations for the citizens. He would look
at ways to increase revenue rather than decTease revenue.

Commissioner Green asked while he was chief of staff at Miami International
Airport he increased revenue. Given the size of Cooper City were does he see
room for generating revenue.

lYr. Napoli said he could have a meeting with staff and the business
community. He would look at fees and look at building out. Cooper City has a
large religious community and maybe there is a way to capitalize on those
with bringing in conferences.



Commissioner Green asked what does he feel is the city's biggest challenge

Mr. Napoli said the budget and living within the budget and negotiations with
BSO,

Commissioner Curran asked about the current Commission he works with.

Mr. Napoli said it is a flve member Commission.

Commissioner Curran asked if they privatize most services or stay in-house.

lYr. Napoli said most services are in house but there are consultants for
capital projects and also for plans review.

Commissioner Curran asked if code is in house

14r. Napoli answered in-house

Commissioner Curran said we do have religious organizations and how does
he feel about taxing those organizations.

N4r. Napoli said he would look to attract more people for events, conferences
and conventions.

Commissioner Curran asked if he could work with the 5 personalities on the
da is.

1.4r. Napoli said he is confldent he can establish good relationships and
understand each Commissioner.

lYayor Ross asked if he met with all the Commission.

lYr. Napoli answered all but Commissioner Green.

l,layor Ross said Mr. Napoli is coming in not knowing the City as opposed to
the other candidate who knows the city. What is his thoughts on hitting the
ground running.

Mr. Napoli do you necessarily want someone to hit the ground running or
stopping and looking and assessing. He brings a wealth of experience, talent
and integrity.

lYayor Ross asked how long he has been in Miami.

lYr. Napoli responded 2 years.

Nlayor Ross asked why Cooper City.

lvlr. Napoli said challenges will be in a smaller community as a bigger one.
This gives opportunity to have closer contact with a smaller community and
he lives close by,

lvlayor Ross asked do you believe that if you have a balanced budget because
you deferred capital projects do you really have a balanced budget.



Mr. Napoli said you may have a balanced budget but you need to find a way
to do those capital projects. Either by increasing revenue or decreasing
expenses in another way. He wants to pursue grants as well.

Mayor asked if there is anything not already asked he would like to discuss.

Mr. Napoli replled no.

Commissioner Curran asked where's the first place you would cut.

N4r. Napoli said he would need to look at staff and services. He would like to
look at outside moneys and fee structures.

Commissioner Pulcini said it would be nice to have someone who knows
about grants and obtaining more money.

Commissioner Curran asked what is the relationship Broward vs Dade.

Mr. Napoli answered said FEMA provides money regionally.

Mayor Ross said we have a lot of passionate residents and they have access
to the City Manager.

1.4r, Napoli said he has those in Miami.

Commissioner Green asked if he had an opportunity to review Mr, Bailey's
qualifications. He also said he knows him by a program offered by the federal
government, He asked if they had any other contact other than that
pro9ram.

Mr. Napoli answered no.

Commissioner Green said he wanted to state publicly he does not have
contact with 1.4r. Napoli. He also said we have 110 member staff what are his
thoughts on staff in terms of we are looking to improve threw opportunities
to grow professionally.

N4r. Napoli said professional development is important. We need an
environment to encourage that. Mentoring programs threw city organizations
can be taken.

Commissioner Curran said looking at cutting staff, seven staff members were
cut and capital projects were cut. His only concern with cutting staff is level
of service. He is not in favor of cutting BSO either. Fire and Police service is
the norm and appreciate what they have. He wants to know how much public
input he would consider.

Mr. Napoli said he does not want to come in and cut staff he would look at
staff compared to city compared to budget. Police and fire should not be cut
but you have to have tough negotiations. He would look at revenue and
efficiencies.



David Nall, said Mr. Bailey has done a great job with Utilities. He asked Mr.
Bailey if there any positions he would cut or fire and replace.

14r. Bailey said he would reserve that answer after digging into the
organization.

lYr. Nall asked about an item placed on a previous agenda regarding pensions
and retroactive pensions in a time where the City needed to be more
fl nancially responsible.

1.4r. Bailey answered that increase would have beneflted two employees. In
2009 the Commission decided to increase the pension factor for the General
employees, he thought it was for everyone. He took it to the pension board
and wanted to take it to the Commission.

l4r. Nall asked Mr. Napoli how he would work with residents.

N4r. Napoli said he attends HOA meetings and outreach meetings and he is
used to dealing with the residents.

N4ike Bufalo, 11648 SW 55 St, asked lYr. Bailey when he came to the city 15
years ago what were the changes he implemented.

Nlr. Bailey answered he first had to learn how the department ran before he
made changes the biggest change he making a capital improvement plan.

Mr. Bufalo asked when he assumed his current position what were some
deflciencies he noted and some improvements he made.

lYr. Napoli said many procedures were not in place that increase collaboration
between staff, He had quality control meetings. He brought in GIS. He also
looked at long-term vacancies.

Aiex Weisberg, 11009 Nashville Dr, asked Mr. Bailey how he would change
things specifically.

Mr. Bailey answered he would have a financial forecast and a capital
improvement plan for multiple years.

limmy coulet, 5215 SW 90 Ter, said he believes it is about employees and
outsourcing. Are these candidates willing to make the hard steps to
outsource? We have to look at overtime and directors.

Ryan Shrouder asked about process and how does l4r. Bailey become a

finalist without a Tesume and the public did not know about his interest.

l4ayor Ross said he spoke personally with N4r. Bailey he did not meet with the
Commission and he is unaware of what he said to the other Commissioners

Mr. Shrouder said we have process issues.

Commissioner Green said when we went through the process a second time
we had a total of 2 similar type of meetings. The Commission didn't have a
consensus with those candidates. He said that there was process in place and



he had a conversation with Mr. Bailey and in addition to that lYs, Sims
indicated Mr. Napoli did provide the Tesume on time and he was then
considered.

Commissioner Pulcini said on the December 11, 2019 we did not select any
candldates. It was then they decided to proceed with internal applicants. He
then received an email from lvlr. Napoli saying he applied and his resume was
not included in the list. The original process was not completed. To complete
the process of reviewing the original applicants is happening tonight,

lYr. Shrouder asked how they knew theTe was an internal applicant
interested.

Commissioner Pulcini said Pat Lynn mentioned to him [4r. Bailey was
interested.

Mr. Shrouder said there was no Tesume presented and when Commissioner
Curran mentioned an internal applicant, the public did not know who he was
talking about.

Commissioner Curran said Mr, Lynn told him N4r, Bailey was interested. Mr.
Bailey can run on his record of accomplishment. He did not mention the
name as he didn't know if the rest of the Commission knew.

Commissioner lvleltzer said it is a HR deficiency and methodology needs to be
in place and placed in the manual.

14r. Shrouder said you have a qualified candidate who is left off and then
there ls no discussion about the internal candidate.

Commissioner lvleltzer said HR needs to flx the issue.

Mayor Ross apologized to 14r. Napoli for the oversight with his resume being
left off.

N4arty Sherwood, 5529 SW 113 Ave, said expiernece here tonight is
impeccable. It is important to make a decision tonight. He is especially
pleased that both candidates are Broward residents. He asked what are the
candidate's thoughts on lobbyists and how would the candidate,s keep the
Commission focused.

lYr. Bailey answered he has received 9600,000 for swales and y2 million for
pipe bursting and most recently we got % million for Natalie,s Cove. He went
to Tallahassee himself each time and gave a presentation. On keeping the
Commission on task he knows the Commission, they have the City,s best
interests at heart, and if we can stay focused on that that is the key.

14r. Napoli answered if you are using a lobbyist look at what you are paying
them. There is a lot of outside money you need a full time person to be
looking at. Submit a great application and give a priority list to the lobbyist.
Concerning the Commission, I need to establish a common vision with the
Commissioners,



Jennifer Goldfarb, 11869 SW 55 St, thanked 14r. Bailey for canal work by her
home and she hopes he can do the same for BSo. If you have to make
budget cuts, do you first start with programs or cut capital proiects? Second
question will you have commissioners talk to directors or come straight to
you.

Mr. Napoli said we have to have priorities based on them we cut from lowest
to highest. As far as Commissioners having relationships with the staff all
items go through the city manager, That department head may not have big
picture.

Mr. Bailey answered he believes members of the commission can ask staff
questions but anything more than that goes to the City Manager. When
cutting either capital or programs. He wants to have the City Manager
recommend the cuts.

Bob Sands asked what you would do if the commission goes to staff before
you.

Mr. Bailey said the City Manager would need to sit with the Commissioner
and review what is layed out in the charter. This organization cannot operate
properly if you do not go that route.

lYr. Napoli said he needs to tell staff that they do not follow commission
direction unless directed by the City Manager.

Mr. Sands said there is a lack of moral how do you build moral while
maintaining respect.

Mr. Napoli said he does not want to enter and cut positions. He would lead
with individuals who are excited to come to work. Leadership is about by
providing clear guidance and making employees feel they are overall apart of
the big picture.

lvlr. Bailey answered he is a staff member and he understands moral issues.
He said moral would increase with a permanent City Manager. He would like
to visit all worksites. Talk to employees make them understand they are
valued. llost employees are comfortable and they may be uncomfortable
times ahead.

Renee Delotta asked the Commission if they are willing to stay here tonight
until we make a decision.

N4ayor Ross thanked the candidates, as we cannot go wrong with either
candidate.

Commissioner Green asked if we will be following a ballot process to vote as

we have done in the past.

Commissioner Pulcini said its two different approaches. N4r. Napoli is an
original candidate,



City Attorney Horowitz said in order to hire a City l4anager there is a
requirement of three items, Four-member vote of a flve member Commission
and a resolution. The best action is direction to produce a resolution. In
regard to the Ballot process this commission has history of considering by
ballot. This is a unique scenario. The process is up to the Commission. By
motion or consensus, considering both candidates or separate. Any action is
also excluding an employment agreement.

lvlayor Ross asked how the Commission wants to proceed

Consensus was reached to use a Motion.

Commissioner Green said foe the Commission to take a vote to see if Mr.
Napoli is qualified is not needed. As he is.

Commissioner Pulcini said we should vote for lvlr. Napoli first as he was a part
of the first resumes.

Commissioner CuTran said should we look and see if Mr. Bailey ls qualified.

Commissioner Nleltzer asked if Mr. Bailey is qualified per the Charter.

Interim City Manager Sims deferred to the City Attorney.

City Attorney Horowitz read the requirements. His understanding given from
14r. Bailey's presentation earlier is he does meet the requirements.

Commissioner Green said the initial process we all voted for candidates there
was not a consensus,

Commissioner lYeltzer said the commission could change the process,

Commissioner Pulcini said he is okay with changing the process.

MOTIONT Djrecting the City Attorney to draft a Resolution appointing Joseph
Napoli as the City l4anager. Moved by Commissioner Meltzer. Seconded
by Commissioner Pulcini. Commissioners Pulcini, Meltzer and Mayor
Ross, Yes. Commissioners creen and Curran, No. Motion passed.

5. Additional Public Comments (each member of the public is allowed to speak
for an additional two (2) minutes)

Ryan Shrouder asked about Mr. Bailey Bachelor's degree and if it is related to
Public Administration or Business Administration or related field.

City Attorney Horowitz read the requirements. He said if the Commission
deems the degree related to the field it is.

lvlr. Shrouder said we should have 1.4r. Bailey submit a resume and follow
process.

Mike Bufalo, 11648 SW 55 St, said Mr. Napoli exceeds expectations. Mr.
Bailey runs Utilities well. 1.4r. Napoli should be hired.



Brenda Kezar, said she agrees with Mr. Bufalo. She is disappointed in
Commissioners Green and Curran and he said we have been with a City
Manager for too long and she wants to have support for a new Manager.

Commissioner Green said this is not the first time we have been down the
road. His no vote was not against Mr. Napoli. He voted no due to process. He
voted against process not the person.

Commissioner Curran said we did not vote on Mr. Bailey. Every time the
process has changed. He is not happy that Mr. Bailey did not get a vote.

Commissioner Meltzer asked if we could take a paper vote.

City Attorney Horowitz said we could reconsider a vote.

Commissioner Green appreclates Commissioner Meltzer's for what he has
proposed. He has no problem with the outcome.

Mayor Ross said a consensus was taken. He does understand what
Commissioner Green was saying.

Commissioner Meltzer said he is now hoping the vote would change.

Commissioner Green said if the vote was 3-2. He would of voted to move
forward in the Resolution process.

MOTION: To reconsider the prior motion. Moved by Commissioner Green.
Seconded by Commissioner Green. Commissioner Pulcini, No.
Commissioners Meltzer, Green, Curran and Mayor Ross. Yes.

MOTION: Directing the City Attorney to draft a Resolution appointing Joseph
Napoli as the City Manager. Moved by Commissioner Green. Seconded
by Commissioner Pulcini. Commissioners Pulcini, Meltzer, Green, and
Mayor Ross, Yes. commissioners curran, No. Motaon passed.

David Nall, said he did a poll outside and Mr. Napoli was chosen, 14-0. He
hopes the vote tonight will lead Into an approval of the Resolution.

Ryan Shrouder asked that the employee agreement be worked on now
instead of waiting.

Bob Sands said we process issues need to be addressed.

6. Adjournment
The meeting was 9:27 PNl.

The min utes of the S mmission Meeting of January 7 , 2O2O wete
approved during th

I City C

ourne d

Ci

Greg Ro Mayor

Commission Meeting of February 11-,2O2O.



At
Kath ims, tyc erk

NOTICE: is meeting is open to the public. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, all
persons who are disabled and who need special accommodataons to partacipate in this meeting because of that
disability should contact the Offlce of the City Clerk, 954-434-4300 ext. 220, not later than two days prior to such
proceeding, One or more members of the City of Cooper City Advisory Boards may be in attendance and may
participate at the meeting. Anyone wishing to appeal any decision made by the Cooper City Commission with respect
to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing will need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose,
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Agenda items may be viewed online at www.coooercitvfl.ora or at
the Office of the City Clerk, City of Cooper City, 9090 SW 50 Place, Cooper City, Florida, 33328, 954-434-4300.

1'


